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This 15 page Addendum deletes the requirement for a WMBE Inclusion Plan, deletes the originally attached Vendor Questionnaire Form replacing it with the Consultant Questionnaire Form, changes the scoring criteria and provides answers to questions submitted by 04/24/2015.


Changes to RFP:


1. Section 9. Women & Minority Business/WMBE Inclusion Plan:  
A WMBE Inclusion Plan is not required to be submitted with your RFP response.

2. Section 11.2 Proposal Evaluation:
A WMBE Inclusion Plan will not be evaluated.

3. Section 11.5 Final Selection:
No percentage weight for a WMBE Inclusion Plan will be considered for selection.

4. Attachments:
a. Delete the original Vendor Questionnaire form.  Respondents are required to complete the attached Consultant Questionnaire form.




b. Delete Attachment #2 Inclusion Plan.  It is not required for this RFP solicitation.



End Changes to RFP




Answers to Questions

Proposers were invited to submit written questions to the Project Manager until the deadline stated on page 1. The following are answers to those questions that clarify this RFP. A number of general questions were submitted that are explained in the RFP and may not be included as specific Q&A in this Addendum. 

Additionally, a number of questions were submitted that asked for more detail and information on website content, online resources, and so on. While very valid questions, we anticipate an extensive Discovery Phase would be undertaken with the selected agency and have chosen not to answer those questions for the purpose the RFP clarification during this initial Selection process. There are many public sources for learning more about public libraries, in general. The Seattle Public Library website offers extensive information, including Mission Statement and Strategic Planning (http://www.spl.org/about-the-library), as well as annual and other reports that offer insights into Library usage.

1. Q: Will any other CMS's besides Ingeniux be considered for the site's redesign?
A: We currently use the Ingeniux CMS and will continue to use it on the newly designed site.

2. Q: The RFP states: “To help in this positioning, the Library is currently undergoing a significant brand strategy redevelopment that includes a full visual redesign of its brand.” Is the brand strategy currently under development? Will it be completed in time to inform the site redesign? 
A: Yes, the new brand strategy is currently under development and we expect it will be ready in time to inform the redesign. 

3. Q: The RFP states: “Public libraries are no longer simple repositories of books, but rather, they are becoming vibrant centers of the community, providing lifelong learning opportunities for all who use their services. The Seattle Public Library has embraced this trend and is well positioned to become an innovative leader for libraries nationwide.” We can certainly provide recommendations and creative concepts around this. Meanwhile, do you have a specific vision of how the concept of community will be manifested on the new site? Are there particular features or functions that you are hoping to introduce to enhance community engagement? 
A: At this point in time we don’t have specific features or functions in mind. However, we are interested in recommendations around community engagement and this is a subject that will be addressed in depth during the extensive Discovery Phase.

4. Q: The RFP refers to “...community-expected online resources”. Can you elaborate on what is meant here? Is this simply a reference to what’s available to “borrow”?
A: This is referring to more than the just the catalog; this is referring to all of resources accessed through SPL.org. There is a partial list of available online resources in the RFP. Improving user experience for accessing online resources will be addressed during the extensive Discovery phase.

5. Q: In terms of personalization, are there user types (i.e., “roles”) beyond Patrons for which you specifically envision a personalized experience?
A: While most visitors to the website are classified as active patrons, there are subset types of those that might have differing personalized experiences depending upon their usage of our resources, etc. The Discovery Phase should define and determine the details of this personalized experience. 

6. Q: The RFP asks for help conducting a website audit to “...identify the core content, prioritize content, eliminate duplicate and outdated content as well as inform the new IA and UX.” Recognizing that you have an in-house content strategist on your team, would it be helpful for us to provide services to collaborate in creating an aspirational content strategy for the new site?
A: We expect the selected agency to work with the Library’s content strategist to develop the new site content strategy.

7. Q: Does the library have any private or internal collections, i.e. historical or gov, that need to be included in the search?
A: Yes, we have what are called “Special Collections” that should be included in search. Our goal is to improve discoverability of Library information, collections, online resources and content. For further information, you can also review the “Library Collection” category of spl.org.

8. Q: It seems that you don’t want HTML as part of the deliverable and we assume that you would have the development firm create the HTML at the time of development. Can you confirm this is accurate? 
A: Yes, that is accurate. We will be using our CMS vendor’s professional services to translate design to HTML, etc.

9. Q: Could you please confirm that being an out-of-state firm will not affect the selection process?  
A: All proposals will be evaluated equally based on the content of their proposals and ability to meet minimum qualifications.

10. Q: Must the cost of travel be included in the price, or can we just bill for actual cost of travel as it is incurred?
A: While actual travels costs can be invoiced at times of travel, all expenses and fees should be detailed and included within this budget, including any travel expenses, accommodation, research, consultant time, project management, and so on. The proposed allocation of the budget should be clear from your proposal.
 
11. Q: The Articles and Research section mentioned on page 4 appears to be built on ProQuest (formerly Serial Solutions) 360 Search. Is it powered by any other technologies?
A: Yes, 360 Search is used to search this section. Because all the databases require Library Card login, it goes through EZProxy and is then passed through to 360 Search. No other technologies are used for the Articles and Research section.

12. Q: Will you be sharing all vendor Q&As?
A: We will respond directly as well as compile all of the applicable questions and answers into an addendum that will be posted to the City’s website after the QA period has ended.

13. Q: Can you please tell us which firms/agencies have submitted questions for this RFP? 
A: We won’t identify individual agencies. We will aggregate the relevant questions and answers in an Addendum that will be posted to the City Website after the question period has expired.

14. Q: Will Ingeniux Professional Services be doing all the tagging and coding work for this project? 
A: Ingeniux will handle the implementation of the design and website.

15. Q: What type of content strategy are you expecting? (Best practices for the future or organizing the existing content for this project?) 
A: We expect content strategy for both the existing content and best practices for moving forward as the site evolves.

16. Q: Are we required to incorporate the existing API’s and programs or can we build the site from scratch and have Ingeniux retag content in our system? 
A: The site will be published through the Ingeniux CMS and will be implemented by Ingeniux.

17. Q: Are there any examples of completed work (other library websites/systems) that you like? If yes, can you tell us what they are and what you like about them? 
A: We expect the proposing agency to research best practices/examples. This will also be addressed in the Discovery period.
 
18. Q: Do you have existing brand guidelines? (vs. the requested style guide) 
A: Yes we have existing logo and identity guides that will be replaced by the current Brand Strategy development that should be complete before we reach the Design Phase for this project.
 
19. Q: What are the basic user numbers & flow patterns for each program, as well as, the top 10 most popular pages?
A: The Library will plan to offer details around these and similar questions during the extensive Discovery Phase of the project.

20. Q: How many physical library locations will be using this new system and are there additional kiosks that will utilize the site?
A: Spl.org is our public-facing website that is accessible to all of our patrons, within the library system and externally.

21. Q: Could we please have demographic information about the user (age, income, geographic, percentage of smart phone users, new/returning user)? 
A: The Library will plan to offer details around these and similar questions during the extensive Discovery Phase of the project.

22. Q: How many bidders are you expecting for this RFP? Are there any incumbent vendors? 
A: We will know how many bidders respond after the response deadline of May 8, 2015. There are no incumbent vendors.

23. Q: Are there any other library related organizations involved in the redesign efforts? (e.g. UW Information School, OCLC etc)
A: No other library-related organizations besides The Seattle Public Library will be involved with the redesign.
 
24. Q: Would you be comfortable sharing Impact Survey and/or Edge Assessment results with us? 
A: Metrics and analytics will be part of the extensive Discovery Phase of the project and can be shared at that time.

25. Q: Is there flexibility in the budget? Or is the $200,000 a budget a hard cap? 
A: Yes, the Library has a limited budget and the cap for this work is $200,000. We do feel that this is an appropriate budget considering there is no development involved.

26. Q: We prefer to work Time & Materials. Would this be an issue?
A: We require an estimate and breakdown of work hours in the proposal. This is one way we can effectively compare the amount of effort and services being provided in each proposal. Please provide hours estimates, given the described scope and the $200,000 budget.  The Library would establish a payment structure during the contract phase which would be based upon the proposed project milestones.

27. Q: Can we confirm that Ingeniux Professional Services will be the development partner we are expected to work with? 
A: Yes, Ingeniux will be the development partner that will work with the selected agency.

28. Q: How available will the dev partner be for feedback/discussion during Discovery & Design phases of the project? This is important since we need to better understand the technical constraint of the systems. Where are they located?
A: Yes, the development partner will be available to collaborate during all phases of the project. They are located in downtown Seattle.

29. Q: What exactly are the handoff points with the dev partner? 
A: The schedule of handoff points will be refined during the early phases of the project, but you have the opportunity to describe how you would approach the handoffs in the proposed schedule in your response.

30. Q: How closely are we expected to work with the development partner during development and for how long?" Since we work Agile, we tend to get the UX part way there during design, but are well aware that fine tuning and redirection comes up during development. What would that look like in this engagement?
A: The selected agency will work very closely with the development partner and the Library through the life of the project. We expect this to be a collaborative and iterative process within the milestone delivery schedule.
 
31. Q: How flexible/customizeable are the various other platforms/systems that integrate with spl.org? Who can/will implement any changes to these systems, if not Ingeniux Professional Services? 
A: The various systems and platforms we use have a range of flexibility. The selected agency will work closely with the Seattle Public Library IT department to identify the possible range of integration.
 
32. Q: When is the “significant brand strategy redevelopment” efforts scheduled to be complete? Will the rebranding partner be available for questions and review during this project? 
A: We expect the Brand Strategy development to be complete by the time we kick off the web redesign. Note that implementation of the Brand Strategy will roll out after the brand strategy is complete. The rebrand agency will not be involved in the redesign of the site, though if there is a required implementation asset that wasn’t addressed in the rebrand, there’s the possibility for their input.

33. Q: Are design enhancements scoped to pages within the spl.org domain, or are enhancements to the other resources (e.g. Bibliocommons, Overdrive, etc.) possible and desired?
A: Design enhancements are scoped for spl.org. That said, there are ongoing enhancements to both BiblioCommons and Overdrive, which we’ll track as we go through the redesign and into the future. The goal is to integrate the user experience as much as possible so we will be carrying over spl.org UX and design implementations wherever possible within vendor’s technology framework.

34. Q: “Integrate the Library’s blogs…” What kind of integration are you anticipating? Visual, content (pull RSS), Search?
A: Yes, visual, content and search. Just to reiterate the RFP, we will be keeping WordPress as the publishing platform.

35. Q: Do we need to design widgets? API-driven integrations? External pages/sites/services? 
A: This will be defined more completely in the Discovery Phase of the project but we do not anticipate external pages/sites/services.

36. Q: Does the design need to include UX and interface design for site editors/admin as well as front-end audiences?
A: Just front-end design. The backend will be the Ingeniux CMS.

37. Q: How many prototype page designs are you expecting?
A: This will be more fully defined in the Discovery and Design Phases, but at this time we anticipate it will be less than 30 prototype page designs.

38. Q: Could you provide more details about what you mean by “Patron Portal”? 
A: While this will be more fully defined in the Discovery Phase as a collaboration between the selected agency, The Seattle Public Library IT department, and Ingeniux, we are currently thinking of the patron portal in terms of a place on the website where content is personalizable per a particular patron’s interests.
 
39. Q: Have any recent usability studies, heuristic usability analysis been conducted? Can you share the results with us?  
A: No usability studies have been conducted recently.
 
40. Q: Who is the most underserved audience by the current website? What level of media/internet literacy can we assume for the site? 
A: Our non-English-speaking patrons are likely the most underserved audience. We anticipate a wide range of media/internet literacy. We serve all of the community.

41. Q: What content needs to be multilingual (“translated content”)? What is the goal for this future phase of work? 
A: This will be more fully defined in the Discovery Phase. You can review spl.org to see the limited content we currently translate.

42. Q: What web analytics platform(s) are currently in use?
A: Google Analytics.

43. Q: What about analytics and event tracking -- should we suggest/mock integration points? 
A: Yes.

44. Q: RFP mentions that we are only responsible for QA and testing “support”. Who is actually responsible for functional testing, performance testing, and QA on content? 
A: Our backend development partner will be conducting functional and performance testing, but we expect the selected agency to be involved in functional testing as the designs are built out into the site. This will ensure the agency’s UX designs have translated to the live site correctly. This will likely be an iterative process.

45. Q: Do you have any test scripts or automated test suites we should be aware of? Should we propose these? 
A: No.

46. Q: How long post-launch are we responsible for “ensure integrity of design via robust QA and testing support”? 
A: Upon completion of the final build out the selected agency will be a member of the review team to ensure integrity of the design. Upon approval, the agency’s role in testing and QA is complete.
 
47. Q: How many stakeholders or groups are involved in reviews? How will the formal reviews be structured? 
A: At this stage, we have identified two approvers for each phase and key deliverable. The project also will be resourced with a core project team and a stakeholder team. The Library project manager will act as the single point of contact for the project (along with a project coordinator). We anticipate needing presentations of key deliverables to both the project team and the stakeholders. Follow-up feedback would be consolidated and prioritized as needed. Presentations will be aligned with the project schedule as we move through the phases.

48. Q: How many revisions are expected per deliverable following reviews? 
A: We expect up to 2 rounds of revisions in each review cycle.

49. Q: What is our role in Search Engine Optimization? Is it limited to following best practices in our page prototypes? Or should we make broader strategic recommendations? 
A: At a minimum it should include best practices in designing the page prototypes, broader strategic recommendations would be welcome.

50. Q: What specific content are you looking to optimize search of? What would be examples of typical search terms that SPL would like high rankings for? 
A: For detail on search results see the “Purpose and Background” section of the RFP. We will define the search results more completely in the Discovery Phase.
 
51. Q: What is your content migration plan? Who will perform the content migration? What is our involvement (if any) in the migration? 
A: We expect the selected agency to play a role in preparing for the migration through robust information architecture to prioritize content within new improved structures, identifying redundant and expired content for removal, and potentially identifying new content to be written.
We expect 3 different types of content work at this point. DB to DB migration using automated scripting, copy/pasting, and finally new content development.

52. Q: Is there any existing content or section(s) of the website that may not be included in the expected redesign? If so, why? 
A: This will be determined by the content audit, but we don’t expect any full sections to be eliminated or excluded.

53. Q: How many stakeholders and subject matter experts would be involved in the project, reviews and approvals? 
A: At this stage we have identified two approvers for each phase and each key deliverable. We anticipate agency presentations of key deliverables to both the project team and the stakeholder team. There will be a group of individual subject matter experts who will be available for discovery interviews. Additionally we’ll have a resource group consisting of staff available to assist with usability testing and content development.
54. Q: Would the SPL want help recruiting users for user testing and research? 
A: For general population recruiting we may need assistance.
 
55. Q: Do you have sign-in or personalization needs for children? 
A: We will need to comply with CIPA/COPA regulations. The details of this compliance will be worked out during discovery phase.

56. Q: Have you developed any web personas? If yes, can you share these at this time? 
A: We do not have any personas at this time, but you have the opportunity to include this in your proposal.

57. Q: Do you have a taxonomist or an information architect on staff? 
A: No.

58. Q: Do you want to include social media in the discovery process? 
A: Inclusion of Social Media channels into the website design will be part of the discovery process.

59. Q: Are there other projects/initiatives/campaigns that may dovetail with this project for any reason?
A: Our current Brand Strategy redesign will inform this project.

60. Q: Will the usability tests be part of the budget, or will these be treated as separate pass-through hard costs? 
A: The usability testing will be part of this budget. If for some reason, it is determined that additional testing is needed that will push the budget over cost, we may open a parallel usability project with a separate budget to achieve these goals. In your proposal, if it’s helpful to provide breakout budget estimates for usability testing, please do so.

61. Q: For the comprehensive website style guide, that can be edited by the Library on a ongoing basis, do you foresee this being a code base or just a design asset deliverable? 
A: The website style guide will outline the visual design specifications including fonts, colors, images, layout, etc.

62. Q: Will the development partner need us to provide redlines for implementation or will layered PSDs suffice?
A: Yes, redlines should be included as part of the deliverables.

63. Q: Does the prototyping phase include HTML prototypes? (we often recommend this approach as it helps with responsive design) 
A: Our development partner will build out the functional XHTML prototypes which will be reviewed by the selected agency to ensure the integrity of their design. However, our development partner will work closely with you iteratively as needed. As a proof of concept, if you need to develop functioning prototypes, please include this in your proposal; however Ingeniux will be the development partner that creates the final page prototypes for CMS integration.

64. Q: Section 5 of the RFP mentions mandatory attendance at key meetings on site throughout the project. Do you have a rough estimate of how many meetings that may be over the 13 month project period? 
A: The selected Agency is required to be on-site for presentations, interviews, and meetings for all major deliverables. You have the opportunity to outline your onsite work in the project schedule included in your proposal.

65. Q: The launch with Bibliocommons was recent; could you describe which of Bibliocommons services/platforms were used for this launch?  
A: We have been using Bibliocommons as our catalog discoverability platform for 5 years.

66. Q: Is the calendar of events a bespoke platform?  Or is this managed through Ingeniux or another platform? 
A: We use Trumba Connect for our events calendar. This is a commercially available hosted product.
  
67. Q: Is the intention of the non-functional prototype intended to be used for user testing? 
A: Yes, the non-functional prototypes can be used for user testing, but the primary purpose of the prototypes is to deliver to our development partner for site implementation.
 


68. Q: Can you provide guidance for the level of information you expect in the functional specifications (is this a document translating design to technical requirements or is it an actual prescriptive technical overview?) 
A: These functional specs will be used to describe the functionality of the site for our development partner. They will create the technical specs for the site build out based on these functionality requirements.

69. Q: To meet the accessibility guidelines, do you need comps that illustrate the accessibility views/pages? 
A: Accessibility will not be separate from the design. The site must be designed incorporating the fundamentals of Universal Design and as well as aligning the new design with WC3 Priority 1 Accessibility Guidelines and Section 508 of the US Rehabilitation Act to provide optimal accessibility to our users. In other words, we do not need separate comps illustrating accessibility views.

70. Q: What’s the model for success on this project – how will you define a successful outcome? 
A: One success measure will be meeting the goals of the Project Objectives in Section 2 of the RFP. Another success measure will be achieved through analysis of traffic on the redesigned site over time.
 
71. Q: What’s driving the deadlines, or how has this schedule of phases been determined? 
A: We have not had a substantial redesign of spl.org since 2002, so we hope to complete the work in a realistic timeframe. However, we recognize the need for a great result, so if a significantly different timeframe were proposed, please include enough information to evaluate that against all of the RFP requirements and other proposals received. 
 
72. Q: How did this budget get established? Was there a team who worked on it? If so, what team member roles were involved in defined it? 
A: The website redesign is funded as part of the 2012 levy.

73. Q: Who’s doing the rebranding work? 
A: Hornall Anderson.
 
74. Q: Why was the rebranding work initiated and who’s driving that? 
A: The Seattle Public Library, Marketing and Online Services Department is driving the rebranding work.

75. Q: Are all stakeholders at the library aware of the pending redesign? 
A: Yes.

76. Q: How many stakeholders do you anticipate being involved in the process and how many should be interviewed as part of the discovery work? 
A: To be determined during the Discovery Phase.

77. Does your current development team have experience doing accessible implementation? How much embedded consulting/training would they need from our team? 
A: Yes our development partner has accessibility implementation experience.

78. Q: How much traffic is mobile versus desktop? 
A: This will be addressed in the Discovery Phase.

79. Q: What are the most common workflows or tasks? 
A: This will be addressed in the Discovery Phase.



80. Q: Does your development team have any pre-existing specific requirements (or even desires) about how design guidelines are provided to them? 
A: This will be addressed in the Discovery Phase.

81. Q: Between Searching for Materials, Consuming Digital content, Finding Events, and Branch Information, how would you prioritize the functionality of the future SPL site?
A: This will be addressed in the Discovery Phase. That said, we expect the selected agency to focus on this topic as part of the IA and UX work.

82. Q: Do you have a specific set of device requirements that the new site needs to work with? 
A: To be determined in the Discovery Phase.

83. Q: How much focus do you anticipate needing on the site administrative environment UI (i.e. updating the UI for the CMS). 
A: We will continue to use the Ingeniux CMS and will not need any focus on the CMS UI.

84. Q: On page 5 of the RFP, you discuss a Core Project Team from the Library, including Marketing and Online Staff. Other than you, who do you envision on the team from SPL being part of the project (their titles and roles)?
A: This will be determined during the Discovery Phase.

85. Q: Under section 11.5, Final Selection, you provide a category of "Organizational Fit." Would you please provide more detail as to what that means so we may be able to address it. 
A: Our vision for Seattle is a city where imagination and opportunity thrive. Our Mission is: The Seattle Public Library brings people, information and ideas together to enrich lives and build community. You can visit spl.org to review our Service Priorities (http://www.spl.org/about-the-library/mission-statement) and our Strategic Plan (http://www.spl.org/Documents/about/strategic_plan.pdf) to better understand our guiding principles.

86. Q: Pages 3-4 of the RFP: are you open to any changes in the underlying technology layers (CMS, catalog discovery layer, events calendar, etc.) if the usability studies suggest it? 
A: To the extent that it is possible we may be open to changes in the graphic presentation but not the underlying technology.
 
87. Q: Pages 4-5 of the RFP: Beyond the Discovery, Design, and Prototype Page Design phase, how long do you anticipate the Building and Launch/Post Launch phases taking on? 
A: The overall project schedule including all the agencies and in-house team work is estimated at 16 months for completion and launch.
 
88. Q: Should our bid price include support for the latter two stages (Building, Launch/Post Launch support) or just the first three? 
A: Your bid should address all phases.

89. Q: About how many page views do you get across your online properties in a month/year? 
A: This will be addressed in the Discovery Phase.

90. Q: How will you prioritize input for decision-making?
A: At this stage, we have identified two approvers for each phase and key deliverable. Feedback will come from a project team, stakeholder team, and library staff.



91. Q: Describe the stakeholder team and estimated review process for any round of presentation, be it IA, UX, copy, design or style guide.
A: We anticipate needing presentations of key deliverables to both the project team and the stakeholders. Follow-up feedback would be consolidated and prioritized as needed.

92. Q: Describe the estimated quantity of individuals you'd expect as input providers in the Discovery phase.
A: This will be determined during the Discovery Phase.

93. Q: How will we agree upon terminology for consistency? 
A: To be determined during the Discovery Phase.

94. Q: Will any content outlining, evaluation or prioritization activities occur before the start of the project and be available as an input document at kick off? 
A: At the kickoff we will, at a minimum, discuss roles and responsibilities, review current website and proposed milestone schedule, and discuss the Library’s goals, but all this will be informed by the selected agencies proposal and initial project schedule.

95. Q: Usability testing is indicated as needed throughout. Is there a preferred format or formality requirement you'll need to be followed? 
A: This will be determined during the Discovery Phase.
 
96. Q: Do all the platforms (Bibliocommons, 360 Search, Content DM, Overdrive) have the ability to integrated directly into the website via API call or iframe?
A: No.

97. Q: Can we access CSS for all to give them a look and feel native to the rest of the site? 
A: Some but not all.

98. Q: Do the various platforms have mobile layouts? 
A: Some but not all.

99. Q: Will blog posts and calendar event be localized? 
A: Blog posts will be determined during the Discovery Phase. Some Events Calendar entries will be localized.

100. Q: Do the catalog platforms have the ability to be localized for things like the book descriptions? 
A: Yes, but this localization is out of scope for this project.
 
101. Q: Does SPL have an existing relationship with a translation service? 
A: Yes.

102. Q: What metrics will be used to measure the success of the new website? 
A: One success measure will be meeting the goals of the Project Objectives in Section 2 of the RFP. Another success measure will be achieved through analysis of traffic on the redesigned site over time.
 
103. Q: What keeps you up at night when you think about this project? 
A: Many of the challenges we are facing are the same challenges faced by the whole library community. Our main concern is selecting an agency that can approach this redesign with an understanding of the Library culture, yet always frame the redesign within the patron’s perspective. Other than that, we have all the basic concerns: that the project will be completed within scope, budget and timeframe, and that we will end up with the very best website possible for our patrons.

104. Q: How many agencies received this RFP?
A: This RFP is posted and open to the public to encourage maximum possible participation in the RFP process with qualified firms.

105. Q: The RFP details a down-select process based on proposals and invite finalists in for presentations. Can you share how many finalists you plan to invite? Is there a maximum number? 
A: There is no maximum number established at this time.

106. Q: Is preference given to agencies within Washington State? 
A: All proposals will be evaluated equally based on the content of their proposals and ability to meet minimum qualifications.

107. Q: What metrics do you currently use for evaluating the success of your current web properties? 
A: Google Analytics and patron feedback.

108. Q: Do you have a list of competitor or colleague organizations that we can review, and also have you identified one or more of them that are doing what you would like to accomplish from a digital perspective? 
A: Not at this time. This will be addressed in the extensive Discovery Phase.

109. Q: Are there aspirational or likeminded organizations that you think are doing a great job from a digital perspective? 
A: Not at this time. This will be addressed in the extensive Discovery Phase.

110. Q: The RFP mentions using Bootstrap or similar framework. Can you provide more detail around desire for breakpoints and devices for display?   
A: This will be expanded upon during the Discovery Phase but generally speaking, we will want to support desktop, laptop, tablet and phone.

111. Q: How often is there a need to create new sites or micro-sites? 
A: We are continually building out sections of the website to feature seasonal programs, etc.

112. Q: Can we assume you will maintain use of the Ingeniux CMS platform? And, if so, which version? 
A: Yes, Ingeniux will be our CMS platform. We will use the latest version (currently version 9.)

113. Q: How has SPL considered SEO services within this engagement? 
A: We are looking for SEO best practices within the framework of the redesign and build.

114. Q: Can you provide access to your Google Analytics platform? 
A: Yes, the selected agency will have access to our Google Analytics platform.

115. Q: Are you registered with Google’s non-profit program? 
A: No, we are a government agency not a non-profit.

116. Q: Are there other initiatives which will occur at the same time as this one which may influence how we think of this engagement? 
A: Our current Brand Strategy redesign will inform this project.

117. Q: The RFP references “WC3 Priority 1 Accessibility Guidelines, Section 508 of the US Rehabilitation Act”. Has SPL also discussed in context to A, AA, and AAA compliance? If so, what is the requirement using that nomenclature?
A: No, we have not yet discussed A, AA, AAA compliance. We will address this in the Discovery Phase.

118. Q: User testing: Can you provide more insight into how you define “all applicable phases”? Detail the desired key checkpoints that are mandatory from your perspective versus nice-to-haves as budget parameters permit? 
A: To be determined during the Discovery Phase, though we expect this to be addressed in the proposed schedule, based on best practices.

119. Q: Who will develop the front-end / presentation-layer HTML code from the PSD files the selected agency will deliver? 
A: Our development partner, Ingeniux, will develop the front-end/presentation layer XHTML.

120. Q: Is SPL receptive to speaking further about the selected agency developing the HTML? 
A: Developing the XHTML is out of scope for this RFP.
 
121. Q: Do you plan to use Ingeniux to do the CMS development 
A: Yes.

122. Q: What is meant by “internal search” in the bullet at the end of page 2? 
A: Search imbedded within the website as opposed to a google search to discover Library content.

123. Q: The RFP provides a partial list of online services provided via platforms and vendors. 
123.1 Can you provide a full list? 
A: This will be addressed in the Discovery Phase
123.2 Can you identify which ones SPL can fully impact the UX, partially impact the UX (and how) or make no impact to the UX (e.g., link out only)? 
A: The design of the online services provided via platforms and vendors may be able to be modified for some resources, but we don’t expect to be able to modify the UX. See page 3 of the RFP for more information about the UX challenges we face. 
123.3 For those where the UX can be impacted, is the effort to do so included in the scope of this RFP? 
A: Yes, but the UX in question is the ability to access these disparate resources using a single-sign-on.

124. Q: How many and which languages will the site be translated into? 
A: To be determined in the Discovery Phase. Note that we will not be translating the entire site. We currently have translation of limited content in 6 supported languages.

125. Q: Outlining project approach and schedule is largely dependent on SPL stakeholder and developer availability. Can you provide an outline of resources that will be aligned to help with this effort?
125.1 Library: roles and responsibilities, full-time or part-time, engaged from start of project or part-way through? 
A: At this stage, we have identified two Library approvers for each phase and key deliverable. The project also will be resourced with a Library core project team and a Library stakeholder team. The Library project manager will act as the single point of contact for the project (along with a project coordinator). Library teams will be engaged in the project from start to launch.
125.2 Ingeniux Professional engaged from start of project or part-way through?
A: Yes, Ingeniux will be engaged on the project from start to launch.
125.3   Others?
A: NA

126. Q: When you say “provide guidance on industry best practices for translated content”, what are you expecting to receive from us? 
A: To be determined in the Discovery Phase. Note that we will not be translating the entire site. We currently have translation of limited content in 6 supported languages.

127. Q: When you stated the vendor is to "Greatly improve discovery and access of Library information, collections, resources and content via internal search and external search engine optimization”. We can design the site and pages to be searched easily, but we would think of SEO as a separate task area. Do you expect that to be included in the proposal or do you have an SEO person/firm assigned to this project as well? 
A: As part of the redesign we expect improved internal search discoverability. A separate issue will be improving search engine optimization. We do not have an SEO person or firm assigned to the project.

128. Q: How much of the content audit and investigation of online resources would the internal Library teams and the Library’s Content Strategist perform? 
A: The selected agency will work very closely with the Library through the life of the project. We expect this to be a collaborative and iterative process within the milestone delivery schedule. 

129. Q: You have specified that the "Agency will design a UX for personalization features that could take the form of a 'Patron Portal’." We assume this is referring to designing personalization features for a logged in state of the site such as personalized content suggestions, but not designing a separate patron portal site. Is this correct? 
A: While this will be more fully defined in the Discovery Phase as a collaboration between the selected agency, The Seattle Public Library IT department, and Ingeniux, we are currently thinking of the patron portal in terms of a place on the website where content is personalizable per a particular patron’s interests.

130. Q: You have specified that the vendor will "Ensure integrity of design via robust QA and testing support through launch and post launch”. What is the definition of “robust QA?” We would assume that we would be in charge of looking for misalignment between the design vision and the implementation only. Is this correct? Also, how long after launch should we be expected to be evaluating the design integrity? With design activities, we generally end design support 30 days after launch. 
A: Yes, this is correct. Upon completion of the final build out the selected agency will be a member of the review team to ensure integrity of the design. 30 days after launch should be sufficient time to achieve this.

131. Q: Other than research and design what other associated costs need to be assumed in the budget you’ve provided? 
A: All work you propose should be included in the budget.

132. Q: It’s stated in the RFP that its purpose is to “to select an Agency that will modernize and redesign Spl.org…” You list at least seven subdomains of spl.org encompassing various other tools and blogs. Will the UX and design solutions be applied across all these various subdomains? 
A: You are not referring to a list of subdomains. This is a partial list of the Library’s online resources which the public often thinks of as spl.org, but in reality are products and services used to deliver library resources. 
The Library provides access to disparate products with varying API availability or completeness. We are looking for the best currently-available solution (knowing that there are known vendor-driven limitations that will constrain possible solutions) to the problem of presenting these resources to patrons in a way that mitigates the current poor UX.

133. Q: On page three of the RFP you state that significant portions of your catalog are not exposed to external search engines and that “While this is largely a backend, technical issue, we would like to explore UX and design-driven solutions that might help solve this issue.” Will the solutions to expose this catalog content be put in place by Ingeniux Professional Services and will they be informing us of the data and meta-data available for use?
A: We expect this to be a collaborative and iterative process between the selected agency, our backend development partner, and the Library.
 
134. Q: Or will the chosen candidate for this scope of work be working alongside Ingeniux Professional Services to determine best ways to access and make this content available to search engines?
A: We expect this to be a collaborative and iterative process between the selected agency, our backend development partner, and the Library.
To clarify, this is referring to more than the just the catalog; this is referring to all of resources accessed through SPL.org. There is a partial list of available online resources in the RFP. Improving user experience for accessing online resources will be addressed during the extensive Discovery phase.
 
135. Q: While the period of the engagement is 16 months, we are assuming this includes Ingeniux Professional Services development time and the agencies “support during building phase”. Do you have an expected time frame for the first three phases of the project (discovery through prototyping)? 
A: The first three phases, Discovery, Design, and Prototype Page Design, are anticipated to take no more than 6-9 months. 


End Answers to Questions


End of Addendum #1
No other items, dates, or deadlines for this RFP are changed.
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Consultant’s Name: ______________________________________________________________




City of Seattle Consultant Questionnaire

INSTRUCTIONS:  This is a mandatory form.  Submit this form with your response. Provide information to the extent information available.  If response is incomplete or requires further description, the City may request additional information within a specified deadline, or may determine the missing information is immaterial to award.   



		Consultant Information



		Consultant’s Legal Name 

		     



		“Doing Business Name” (dba) if applicable

		     



		Mailing Address 

		     



		Contact Person and Title 

		     



		Contact Person’s Phone Number

		     



		Contact Person’s Fax Number

		     



		Contact Person’s E-Mail Address

		     



		Dun & Bradstreet number (if available)

		     



		Identify the City and State of your company headquarters

		     







		Consultant Registration with City of Seattle



		Did your firm register on to the City’s Registration System at

http://www2.ci.seattle.wa.us/Consultantregistration/default.asp?  

For assistance, call 206-684-0444.

		[bookmark: Check2]Yes |_|              No|_|     





		Most companies must hold a Seattle Business License (if you have a facility/office in Seattle, conduct sales visits to Seattle, deliver products in your own trucks, or perform on-site consulting, repairs, installation, etc).  If you fall within that category, will you immediately seek a Business License upon award and ensure all taxes are paid current?

		Yes |_|              No|_|     









		Ownership

		



		Is your firm a sole proprietorship, partnership, corporation, limited liability company, subsidiary, parent, holding company, or affiliate of another firm?  If yes, identify firm type and name of principal

		     



		What year was your firm, under the present ownership configuration, founded?

		     



		How many years has your firm been in continuous operation without interruption?

		     



		What year did your firm begin providing, on a continuous basis, the types of services or products that are required from this solicitation?

		     







		Financial Resources and Responsibility

		Specify yes or no.  

If yes, explain.



		Within the previous five years has your firm been the debtor in a bankruptcy?

		     



		Is your firm in the process of or in negotiations toward being sold?

		     



		Within the previous five years has your firm been debarred from contracting with any local, state, or federal governmental agency?

		     



		Within the previous five years has your firm been determined to be a non-responsible for any government contract?

		     



		Within the previous five years has a governmental or private entity terminated your firm’s contract prior to contract completion?

		     



		Within the previous five years has your firm used any Subconsultant to perform work on a government contract when that Subconsultant had been debarred by a governmental agency?

		     







		Affirmative Contracting – SMC 20.42

		Specify yes or no.  



		Within the previous ten years has your firm been found to have violated any anti-discrimination laws or regulations, whether they  be local, state, or federal?

		      If yes, explain.








		Disputes

		Specify yes or no.  

If yes, explain.



		Within the previous five years has your firm been the defendant in court on a matter related to payment to subconsultants or contract work performance?

		     



		Does your firm have outstanding judgments pending against it?

		     



		Within the previous five years, was your firm assessed liquidated damages on a contract?

		     



		Is your firm presently involved in a dispute (including litigation) regarding its right to provide the product or service being requested by the City for this contract, including but not limited to notice of and/or in litigation about patent infringement for the product and/or service that your firm is offering to the City?

		     







		Compliance

		Specify yes or no. 

 If yes, explain.



		Within the previous five years, has your firm or any of its owners, partners, or officers, been assessed penalties or found to have violated any laws, rules, or regulations of a government entity?  This does not include owners of stock in your firm if your firm is a publicly traded corporation.  

		     



		Within the past ten years, has any principal, officer or employee who will perform any of the work for the City been convicted of a crime ? 

		



		If a license is required to perform the services sought by this solicitation, within the previous  ten years has your firm or any principal, officer or employee who will perform work for the City had a license suspended by a licensing agency or been found to have violated licensing laws?

		     



		If Hazardous Materials are an element of the scope of work to be performed for the City,  has any principal, officer or employee who will perform work for the City had any violations of improper disposal of such materials or any violation of associated laws, rules or regulations in the previous five years? 

		     



		Is there any other information that the City should be aware of regarding your history with financial, criminal or legal history, that has bearing on the work that the City is considering you to perform? 

		







		Involvement by Current and Former City Employees

		Specify yes or no. 





		Are any of your company’s principals, officers or employees who will perform work for the City, a current or former City of Seattle employee or volunteer?  If yes, identify the employee name.  Advise them of the duty to comply with City of Seattle’s Code of Ethics, Seattle Municipal Code Chapter 4.16. 

		     





		Will any of your principals, officers or employees who will perform work for the City work more than 1,000 hours (per rolling 12 months) within a City contract, combining the hours for work under this contract and any other?  If so, identify the worker by name, and if the work pertains to an existing City contract, identify the contracting department and name of City contact.  Advise the worker of their duty to comply with the City of Seattle’s Code of Ethics, Seattle Municipal Code Chapter 4.16

		     



		Does any principal, officer or employee who will perform work for the City of your firm, have a business interest or a close family or domestic relationship with any City official, officer or employee who was, is, or will be involved in selection, negotiation, drafting, signing, administration or evaluation of the Consultant performance?  

		     
















		Business History

		Specify yes or no. 

 



		In the last five years, has your firm held contracts with any other public agency to provide  services similar in size and scope to that required by the City of Seattle in this solicitation?

		     



		Provide and/or attach a list contracts your local firm held in the past five years, with sufficient detail for the City to understand the depth and breadth of your experience, with a particular emphasis on contracts with public agencies.   The City may use this to assess your capability and experience at this particular type of product provision or service work.  Specify the name/contact that can serve as a reference for each.

· If you have many such contracts, you can provide a brief list. 

· If you are a subsidiary of a national firm, summarize the contracts that represent your local office.   









 

		









		This form is submitted to the City of Seattle by an officer or person eligible to represent the Consultant firm, and the submittal certifies:



		Consultant is not debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible for award of contracts by any state, local, federal or other public agency.



		During the most recent three years, the Consultant has not  been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendering against the firm for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a federal, state or local government contract or subcontract; violation of federal or state antitrust or similar statutes, relating to the submission of offers; or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion, or receiving stolen property, and my firm is not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a Government entity with, commission of any of these offenses.



		Consultant has not paid, nor will pay, federal appropriated funds (including profit or fee received under a covered federal transaction), to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress on his or her behalf in connection with this solicitation, the Offeror shall notify the City of Seattle and complete and submit, with its offer, OMB standard form LLL, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities.



		Consultant has not had a governmental or private entity contract terminated prior to contract completion or debarred from submitting a contract proposal, within the last five years.



		Within the previous five years, Consultant has not used any subconsultant to perform work on a government contract when that Subconsultant had been debarred by a governmental agency.



		Consultant’s Offer is valid until the date the City awards a Consultant Contract or rejects all offers;



		Consultant has not, directly or indirectly, entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, or otherwise taken any action in restraint of competitive pricing in the preparation and submission of its Offer;



		Consultant shall provide immediate written notice to the City of Seattle if, at any time prior to contract award, the Offeror learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.



		Submittal of this Consultant Questionnaire with your proposal provides authority and certification for your entire submittal, and is an attestation that the information in this Consultant Questionnaire and within your submittal proposal documents are true and valid








City Non-Disclosure Request 



If you believe any statements or items you submit to the City as part of this submittal/response are exempt from public disclosure under the Washington Public Records Act (PRA), you must identify and list them below.  You must very clearly and specifically identify each statement or item, and the specific exemption that applies.  If awarded a City contract, the same exemption status will carry forward to the contract records.  



The City will not exempt materials from disclosure simply because you mark them with a document header or footer, page stamp, or a generic statement that a document is non-disclosable, exempt, confidential, proprietary, or protected.  You may not identify the entire page, unless the entire page is within the exemption scope. Only records properly listed on this Form will be protected and withheld for notice.  All other records will be considered fully disclosable upon request. 



|_|    I do not request any information be withheld.



|_|    I request the following specific information be withheld.  I understand that all other information will be considered public information.  For each statement or item you intend to withhold, you must fill out every box below.  You should not require an entire page withheld; only request the specific portion subject to the exemption. 



		Document Page: 

Specify the page number on which the material is located within your submittal package  (page number)

		Statement:

Repeat the text you request to be held as confidential, or attach a redacted version. 

		RCW Exemption:  

Specify the RCW exemption  including the subheading



		



		

		



		



		

		



		



		

		







For this request to be valid, you must specify the RCW provision or other State or Federal law that designates the documents as exempt from disclosure.  For example, potential RCW exemptions include the following:

1.  RCW 42.56.230.3 – Personal information -  taxpayer 

2. RCW 42.56.230.4 – Personal information – Credit card numbers and related

3. RCW 42.56.240 -  Investigative, law enforcement and crime victims

4. RCW 42.56.250 – Employment and licensing – specify the applicable subheading

5. RCW 42.56.260 - Real estate appraisals

6. RCW 42.56.270 (Items 1 through 17) – specify which subheading.

7. RCW 42.56.270 (items 1 through 17) – specify applicable subheading

8. RCW 42.56.420 - Security






Equal Benefits Compliance Declaration

Please declare one (1) option from the list below that describes the Contractor’s intent to comply with Seattle Municipal Code Chapter 20.45 should you win the contract. 

Equal Benefits applies to any contractor location in the United States where substantive contract work is being performed (work directly related in a substantial way to the contract scope and deliverables). 

[bookmark: Check5]|_|	Option A The Contractor makes, or intends to make by the contract award date, all benefits available on an equal basis to its employees with spouses and its employees with domestic partners, and to the spouses and the domestic partners of employees, in every location within the United States where substantial work on contract will be performed.  



[bookmark: Check6]|_|	Option B The Contractor does not make benefits available to either the spouses or the domestic partners of its employees.



[bookmark: Check7]|_|	Option C The Contractor has no employees.



[bookmark: Check8]|_|	Option D Collective Bargaining Delay.  Benefits are available on an equal basis to non-union workers, but union workers are subject to a collective bargaining agreement that does not provide equal benefits.



[bookmark: Check9]|_|	Option E Open Enrollment Delay. The first open enrollment period for implementing Equal Benefits is not available until after contract execution and Contractor will provide a cash equivalent payment to eligible employees until Equal Benefits can be implemented.



|_|	Option F Cash Equivalent Payment. The Contractor intends to provide a cash equivalent payment to eligible employees in lieu of making benefits available.



|_|	No United States Presence The Contractor does not perform substantial work for the contract in any United State location.



|_|	Non-Compliant The Contractor does not comply and does not intend to comply, and refuses all options provided above.



Equal Benefits Instructions

Seattle Municipal Code Chapter 20.45 (SMC 20.45) requires companies executing a City contract to provide health and benefits that are the same or equivalent to domestic partners of employees as to spouses of employees, and of their dependents and family members.  

1. Carefully fill out the Equal Benefits Declaration. It is essential to your standing in the evaluation process, so it is important to understand and complete the declaration properly. 

2. The Buyer or Coordinator for the solicitation can answer any questions about this requirement or you may call the general office at 206-684-0444.  Call before you submit your bid to ensure you’ve filled out the form correctly.  

3. "Domestic Partner" is any person who is party to a same-sex or opposite-sex domestic partnership that is legally recognized in the place of jurisdiction where the union was established, including same-sex marriage, or registered as a Domestic Partner with the employer or  government registry established by state or local law. If the employer does not have a registration system and does not intend to implement one, the City of Seattle has a registration system as an option: http://www.seattle.gov/leg/clerk/dpr.htm

The City will review your responses and make a final determination.  If the information you supply is conflicting or not clearly supported by the documentation that the City receives, the City may reject your entire submittal (bid or proposal) or may seek clarification to ensure the City properly classifies your compliance.  

Companies that select “Non Compliant” will be rejected, unless there is no competitor that is compliant, responsive and responsible.  The City may also find a Bidder “Non Compliant” upon inspection of their program. Be prepared with documentation to support your declaration. All contracts awarded by the City may be audited for equal benefits compliance. Non-compliance may result in the rejection of a bid or proposal, or termination of the contract.

FAS Revised 1/6/2015
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